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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

or

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For Quarter Ended September 26, 2009

Commission File Number 000-30789

ENTEGRIS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)
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Delaware 41-1941551
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) (IRS Employer ID No.)

129 Concord Road, Billerica, Massachusetts 01821

(Address of Principal Executive Offices)

Registrant�s Telephone Number (978) 436-6500

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    YES  x    NO  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    YES  ¨    NO  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer x Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer ¨ Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    YES  ¨    NO  x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common stock, as of the close of the latest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at October 23, 2009
Common Stock, $0.01 Par Value 129,972,988
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Item 1. Financial Statements

ENTEGRIS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share data) September 26, 2009 December 31, 2008
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,376 $ 115,033
Trade accounts and notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,514 and
$1,312 80,062 70,535
Inventories 84,116 102,189
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax charges 11,001 14,661
Assets held for sale �  2,450
Other current assets 6,615 8,260

Total current assets 260,170 313,128

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $222,094 and $208,527 146,726 159,738

Other assets:
Intangible assets, net 82,788 93,139
Deferred tax assets and noncurrent tax assets 12,126 13,315
Other assets 16,219 18,504

Total assets $ 518,029 $ 597,824

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 11,464 $ 13,166
Short-term borrowings 7,001 �  
Accounts payable 27,044 21,782
Accrued liabilities 29,475 36,971
Deferred tax liabilities and income taxes payable 5,694 7,437

Total current liabilities 80,678 79,356

Long-term debt, less current maturities 73,135 150,516
Pension benefit obligations and other liabilities 21,448 24,559
Deferred tax liabilities and noncurrent income tax liabilities 4,724 7,223

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Shareholders� equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding
as of September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008 �  �  
Common stock, par value $.01; 400,000,000 shares authorized; issued and outstanding
shares: 129,943,181 and 113,101,535 1,299 1,131
Additional paid-in capital 749,388 684,974
Retained deficit (444,092) (376,247) 
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Accumulated other comprehensive income 28,207 26,312

Total Entegris, Inc. shareholders� equity 334,802 336,170
Noncontrolling interest 3,242 �  

Total equity 338,044 336,170

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 518,029 $ 597,824

See the accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ENTEGRIS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data) Three months ended Nine months ended
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Net sales $ 110,706 $ 145,789 $ 252,320 $ 441,963
Cost of sales 65,929 90,391 178,795 262,690

Gross profit 44,777 55,398 73,525 179,273
Selling, general and administrative expenses 29,175 35,373 84,581 115,800
Engineering, research and development expenses 8,575 10,284 25,322 31,147
Amortization of intangible assets 4,723 4,858 14,635 14,497
Impairment of goodwill �  379,810 �  379,810
Restructuring charges 2,368 3,332 12,454 3,332

Operating loss (64) (378,259) (63,467) (365,313) 
Interest expense, net 2,681 614 7,105 682
Other expense, net 4,114 947 429 1,823

Loss before income taxes and equity in affiliates (6,859) (379,820) (71,001) (367,818) 
Income tax expense (benefit) 623 12,897 (4,226) 16,312
Equity in net loss of affiliates 132 195 1,076 49

Loss from continuing operations (7,614) (392,912) (67,851) (384,179) 

Loss from operations of discontinued businesses, net of taxes �  (90) �  (1,025) 

Net loss (7,614) (393,002) (67,851) $ (385,204) 
Less net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest 6 �  6 �  

Net loss attributable to Entegris, Inc. $ (7,608) $ (393,002) $ (67,845) $ (385,204) 

Amounts attributable to Entegris, Inc.
Loss from continuing operations, net of tax $ (7,608) $ (392,912) $ (67,845) $ (384,179) 
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax �  (90) �  (1,025) 

Net loss attributable to Entegris, Inc. $ (7,608) $ (393,002) $ (67,845) $ (385,204) 

Basic loss per common share attributable to Entegris, Inc.:
Continuing operations $ (0.07) $ (3.51) $ (0.60) $ (3.40) 
Discontinued operations �  (0.00) �  (0.01) 
Net loss attributable to Entegris, Inc. $ (0.07) $ (3.52) $ (0.60) $ (3.41) 

Diluted loss per common share attributable to Entegris, Inc.:
Continuing operations $ (0.07) $ (3.51) $ (0.60) $ (3.40) 
Discontinued operations �  (0.00) �  (0.01) 
Net loss attributable to Entegris, Inc. $ (0.07) $ (3.52) $ (0.60) $ (3.41) 

Weighted shares outstanding:
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Basic 115,023 111,796 113,355 112,942
Diluted 115,023 111,796 113,355 112,942

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ENTEGRIS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Common
shares

outstanding
Common

stock

Additional
paid-in
capital

Retained
earnings

Accumulated other
comprehensive

income Total
Comprehensive

loss

Balance at December 31, 2007 115,356 $ 1,154 $ 701,510 $ 145,462 $ 4,183 $ 852,309
Shares issued under stock plans 1,276 13 3,075 �  �  3,088
Share-based compensation expense �  �  5,558 �  �  5,558
Repurchase and retirement of common
stock (3,971) (40) (24,148) (4,707) �  (28,895) 
Other, net of tax �  �  �  �  38 38 38
Foreign currency translation �  �  �  �  7,704 7,704 7,704
Net loss �  �  �  (385,204) �  (385,204) (385,204) 

Total comprehensive loss $ (377,462) 

Balance at September 27, 2008 112,661 $ 1,127 $ 685,995 $ (244,449) $ 11,925 $ 454,598

(In thousands)

Common
shares

outstanding
Common

stock

Additional
paid-in
capital

Retained
deficit

Accumulated other
comprehensive

income
Noncontrolling

interest Total
Comprehensive

loss

Balance at December 31, 2008 113,102 $ 1,131 $ 684,974 $ (376,247) $ 26,312 $ �  $ 336,170
Shares issued under stock plans 741 7 1,054 �  �  �  1,061
Shares issued under stock
offering 16,100 161 56,526 56,687
Share-based compensation
expense �  �  6,299 �  �  �  6,299
Tax benefit associated with
stock plans �  �  535 �  �  �  535
Recognition of noncontrolling
interest upon acquisition of
business �  �  �  �  �  3,248 3,248 �  
Reclassification of foreign
currency translation associated
with acquisition of business �  �  �  �  756 �  756 756
Other, net of tax �  �  �  �  65 �  65 65
Foreign currency translation �  �  �  �  1,074 �  1,074 1,074
Net loss �  �  �  (67,845) �  (6) (67,851) (67,851) 

Total comprehensive loss $ (65,956) 

Balance at September 26, 2009 129,943 $ 1,299 $ 749,388 $ (444,092) $ 28,207 $ 3,242 $ 338,044

See the accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ENTEGRIS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Nine months ended
(In thousands) September 26, 2009 September 27, 2008
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (67,851) $ (385,204) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Loss from discontinued operations �  1,025
Depreciation 23,628 18,776
Amortization 14,635 14,497
Share-based compensation expense 6,299 5,558
Impairment of goodwill �  379,810
Impairment of equity investments �  1,102
Impairment of property and equipment 388 �  
Provision for doubtful accounts 190 (140) 
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory 4,488 4,116
Deferred tax valuation allowance 17,228 26,924
Provision for deferred income taxes (19,937) (14,771) 
Equity in net loss of affiliates 1,076 49
Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory sold 4,116 5,718
Loss on sale of property and equipment 19 247
Loss recognized as a result of remeasuring to fair value the equity interest in the acquiree held by the
Company before the business combination 201 �  
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 6 �  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding effects of acquisitions:
Trade accounts receivable and notes receivable (7,486) 14,169
Inventories 10,715 (884) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,783 (9,723) 
Other current assets 2,370 2,371
Income taxes payable 2,037 (22,230) 
Other (1,030) 316

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (7,125) 41,726

Investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment (11,521) (19,194) 
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 493 (161,973) 
Purchase of equity investments �  (10,982) 
Proceeds from sale of assets held for sale 2,314 �  
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 236 1,029

Net cash used in investing activities (8,478) (191,120) 

Financing activities:
Principal payments on short-term borrowings and long-term debt (528,116) (48,406) 
Proceeds from short-term borrowings and long-term debt 452,722 133,000
Issuance of common stock 1,061 3,088
Proceeds from stock offering, net of offering costs 56,687 �  
Repurchase and retirement of common stock �  (28,895) 
Payments for debt issuance costs (3,638) (622) 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (21,284) 58,165

Discontinued operations:
Net cash used in operating activities �  (343) 
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Net cash provided by investing activities �  735

Net cash provided by discontinued operations �  392

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 230 4,143

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (36,657) (86,694) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 115,033 160,655

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 78,376 $ 73,961

Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Non-cash transactions
Acquisition of business through the use of a seller�s note $ 3,221 �  

See the accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ENTEGRIS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Entegris is a leading provider of a wide range of products for purifying, protecting and transporting critical materials used in processing and
manufacturing in the semiconductor and other high-technology industries. The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany profits, transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, particularly receivables,
inventories, property, plant and equipment, and intangibles, accrued expenses and income taxes and related accounts, and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the condensed consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

In the opinion of the Company, the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments necessary to
present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial position as of
September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the results of operations for the three months and nine months ended September 26, 2009 and
September 27, 2008, and shareholders� equity and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for the nine months ended September 26, 2009 and
September 27, 2008.

The condensed consolidated financial statements and notes are presented as permitted by Form 10-Q and do not contain certain information
included in the Company�s annual consolidated financial statements and notes. The information included in this Form 10-Q should be read in
conjunction with Management�s Discussion and Analysis and consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company�s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. The results of operations for the nine months ended September 26, 2009 are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to and including October 27, 2009 which is the date these financial statements were issued.

Basis of Presentation The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Company had a net loss of $517.0 million in fiscal 2008, including after-tax goodwill impairment charges of $454.6 million, a first quarter
2009 net loss of $37.7 million, a second quarter 2009 net loss of $22.5 million, and a third quarter 2009 net loss of $7.6 million. The Company
has experienced significant revenue deterioration due to a severe downturn in both the capital and unit-driven segments of the semiconductor
industry that began during the second half of 2008. Revenues declined sharply from $145.8 million in the third quarter of 2008 to $112.7 million
in the fourth quarter of 2008 and $59.0 million in the first quarter of 2009, followed by a modest recovery to $82.6 million in the second quarter
of 2009 and $110.7 million in the third quarter of 2009.

As a result of the poor business environment, the Company projected early in 2009 that it would violate the debt covenants in its then-existing
revolving credit facility. Accordingly, the Company�s management, working with its banks, undertook the amendment of its revolving credit
facility. On March 2, 2009, the Company amended and restated its revolving credit facility. The restated revolving credit facility, as further
amended in July 2009 and August 2009, currently provides a revolving commitment of $121.7 million. $11.0 million of the revolving
commitment may not be borrowed unless a majority of the lenders consent. The Company�s ability to borrow under the restated credit facility is
also subject to a borrowing base, which is calculated based on the Company�s level of qualifying U.S. accounts receivable, inventories and value
of property, plant and equipment. At September 26, 2009, the Company�s borrowing base supported $106.5 million in total availability with
$67.4 million in borrowings and $1.3 million in undrawn letters of credit outstanding at the time. The restated revolving credit facility requires
the Company to maintain compliance with new debt covenants
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and to pay higher rates of interest. The Company�s restated credit agreement contains financial covenants that limit its ability to make capital
expenditures of more than $16.0 million in 2009 and more than $20.0 million in 2010; requires that the Company maintain a minimum level of
cash in the United States; and requires the Company to achieve certain levels of EBITDA performance during 2009 and the first quarter of 2010.
Beginning in the second quarter of 2010, the Company must maintain or exceed fixed charge coverage and cash flow leverage ratios. (Also see
Note 8 to the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements). Through September 26, 2009, the Company was in compliance with all
applicable debt covenants.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying value of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and short-term debt
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments. The fair value of long-term debt was estimated using discounted cash
flows based on market interest rates for similar instruments and approximated its carrying value at September 26, 2009.

2. ACQUISITION

In 2007, the Company acquired a 40% ownership interest in Pureline Co., Ltd. (Pureline), a privately held company located in Munmak, Korea
and manufacturer of fluid handling products. The Company accounted for its interest in Pureline under the equity method of accounting.
Concurrent with its 2007 investment in Pureline, the Company obtained an option to purchase one-half of the remaining outstanding shares of
Pureline through July 31, 2009 and the remaining outstanding shares thereafter by July 31, 2010. The exercise price of such options to purchase
the additional equity interest in Pureline was set at a predetermined multiple of Pureline�s calendar 2008 and 2009 adjusted earnings.

On July 31, 2009, the Company exercised its option and acquired an additional 30% equity interest in Pureline. The exercise price of the option
to purchase the additional 30% equity interest was $4.3 million. The Company paid $1.1 million in cash and executed a note to the seller for
$3.2 million, payable in three installments through April 2010. The addition of Pureline augments the Company�s base of business in the
semiconductor industry, particularly in the growing Korean market.

As of the date of the acquisition, the Company owned a 70% controlling interest in Pureline. Accordingly, the transaction was accounted for
under the acquisition method of accounting and the results of operations of Pureline are included in the Company�s consolidated financial
statements as of and since July 31, 2009.

Pureline�s sales and operating results for the three-month period ended September 26, 2009 were not material to the Company�s condensed
consolidated financial statements. Pro forma results are not included since this acquisition does not constitute a material business combination.

The Company remeasured its previously held equity interest in Pureline at its July 31, 2009 fair value. The July 31, 2009 fair value of the equity
interest in Pureline held by the Company before the acquisition date was $4.3 million. Based on the carrying value of the Company�s equity
interest in Pureline held by the acquirer before the business combination, the Company recognized a loss of $0.2 million in earnings. In prior
reporting periods, the Company recognized changes in the value of its equity interest in Pureline related to translation adjustments in other
comprehensive loss. Accordingly, the $0.8 million recognized previously in other comprehensive loss was reclassified and included in the
calculation of the charge to earnings.

In connection with the transaction, the Company measured and recorded the fair value of the 30% noncontrolling interest in Pureline. The fair
value of the noncontrolling interest in Pureline at July 31, 2009 was $3.2 million.
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The purchase price has been preliminarily allocated based on the fair values of all of Pureline�s assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the
noncontrolling interest associated with the 30% minority interest recognized in the Company�s consolidated balance sheet. The final valuation of
net assets is expected to be completed as soon as possible, but no later than one year from the acquisition date. Certain net assets and liabilities
are still being finalized. The following table summarizes the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair values of the assets at the
date of acquisition:

(In thousands):
Accounts receivable, inventory and other assets $ 3,730
Property, plant and equipment 3,909
Identifiable intangible assets 4,210
Goodwill 716

Total assets acquired 12,565

Current liabilities 604
Long-term liabilities 82

Total liabilities assumed 686

Net assets acquired $ 11,879

The identifiable intangible assets included tradenames and trademarks, patents and customer relationships with estimated useful lives ranging
from 7 to 10 years. The fair value of identifiable intangible assets was determined using various valuation techniques. These methods used a
forecast of expected future net cash flows and do not anticipate any revenue or cost synergies. These cash flows are then adjusted to present
value by applying an appropriate discount rate that reflects the risk factors associated with the cash flow streams, some of which are more certain
than others.

The valuation of the Company�s previously held equity interest, the 30% noncontrolling interest in Pureline and the identifiable intangible assets
were based on the information that was available as of the acquisition date and the expectations and assumptions that have been deemed
reasonable by the Company�s management.

In performing these valuations, the Company used discounted cash flows and other factors as the best evidence of fair value. The key underlying
assumptions of the discounted cash flows were projected revenues, gross margin expectations and operating cost estimates. There are inherent
uncertainties and management judgment required in these determinations. No assurance can be given that the underlying assumptions will occur
as projected.

The goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisition will not be amortized and is not deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill is expected
to be realized through the benefits of cost-saving synergies associated with the leveraging of the Company�s manufacturing and administrative
functions as well as the enhancement of sales and marketing efforts through the Company�s expanded global sales and distribution network and
product offerings. The goodwill will be included in the Company�s Contamination Control Solutions reporting unit.

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In June 2007, the Company announced its intent to divest its cleaning equipment business, a seller of precision cleaning systems to
semiconductor and hard disk drive customers for use in their manufacturing operations. The Company sold the assets of the cleaning equipment
business in April 2008 for proceeds of $0.7 million, essentially equal to the carrying value of the assets.
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The condensed consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to segregate as discontinued operations the assets and liabilities, and
operating results of, the product lines divested for all periods presented. The summary of operating results from discontinued operations is as
follows:

(In thousands)

Three
months
ended

September 27,
2008

Nine months
ended

September 27,
2008

Net sales $ �  $ 570

Loss from discontinued operations, before income taxes $ (142) $ (1,634) 
Income tax benefit 52 609

Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ (90) $ (1,025) 

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
December 31,

2008
Raw materials $ 20,723 $ 24,922
Work-in process 13,821 16,498
Finished goods(a) 49,005 59,954
Supplies 567 815

Total inventories $ 84,116 $ 102,189

(a) Includes consignment inventories held by customers for $3,989 and $4,465 at September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Identifiable intangible assets, net of amortization, of $82.8 million as of September 26, 2009 are being amortized over useful lives ranging from
3 to 15 years and are as follows:

As of September 26, 2009

(In thousands)
Gross carrying

amount
Accumulated
amortization

Net carrying
value

Patents $ 18,954 $ 16,430 $ 2,524
Developed technology 74,988 45,049 29,939
Trademarks and trade names 17,134 7,668 9,466
Customer relationships 56,769 16,501 40,268
Other 5,977 5,386 591

$ 173,822 $ 91,034 $ 82,788
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As of December 31, 2008

(In thousands)

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Net
carrying

value
Patents $ 17,855 $ 15,218 $ 2,637
Developed technology 74,988 36,742 38,246
Trademarks and trade names 15,500 6,872 8,628
Customer relationships 55,400 12,595 42,805
Other 7,664 6,841 823

$ 171,407 $ 78,268 $ 93,139
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Aggregate amortization expense for the three months and nine months ended September 26, 2009 amounted to $4.7 million and $14.6 million,
respectively. Estimated amortization expense for calendar years 2009 to 2013 and thereafter is approximately $19.2 million, $13.3 million, $10.1
million, $9.4 million, $8.8 million, and $36.7 million, respectively.

6. WARRANTY

The Company accrues for warranty costs based on historical trends and the expected material and labor costs to provide warranty services. The
majority of products sold are covered by a warranty for periods ranging from 90 days to one year. The following table summarizes the activity
related to the product warranty liability during the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009 and September 27, 2008:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Balance at beginning of period $ 1,195 $ 1,882 $ 1,112 $ 1,306
Accrual for warranties issued during the period 185 434 819 1,782
Adjustment of unused previously recorded accruals (351) (471) (408) (674) 
Settlements during the period (101) (354) (595) (923) 

Balance at end of period $ 928 $ 1,491 $ 928 $ 1,491

7. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

For the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009 and September 27, 2008, the accrued liabilities, provisions and
payments associated with the employee severance and retention costs of the Company�s restructuring activities were as follows:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Accrued liabilities at beginning of period $ 7,559 $ 6,145 $ 12,696 $ 6,209
Provision 580 4,074 5,553 9,208
Payments (3,626) (2,009) (13,736) (7,207) 

Accrued liabilities at end of period $ 4,513 $ 8,210 $ 4,513 $ 8,210

Global restructuring and cost reduction initiatives

In the third quarter of 2008, the Company announced the appointment of a new Chief Operating Officer. In conjunction with this change in
executive management, the Company initiated a global business restructuring of its sales and marketing functions, manufacturing operations,
and realignment of its global supply chain and related ancillary operational functions. The Company has incurred employee termination and
other costs in connection with this business restructuring, as well as actions taken in response to the downturn in the semiconductor industry that
began during the second half of 2008.

The Company announced on November 4, 2008 that it would close the larger of its two manufacturing facilities in Chaska, Minnesota and will
transfer the related production to its other existing facilities. The closure, which impacted approximately 200 positions in the Company�s
worldwide workforce, is expected to be completed by the end of 2009. Associated with these changes, the Company recorded $10.4 million in
the year ended December 31, 2008 related to employee severance and retention costs (generally over the employees� required remaining term of
service) that were classified as restructuring charges. In the first quarter of 2009, the Company announced workforce reductions in Asia and
Japan, which affected approximately 132 positions. In the second quarter of 2009, the Company announced additional global workforce
reductions, affecting approximately 100 positions. In connection with the above actions, the Company recorded charges related to employee
severance costs of approximately zero and $4.7 million for the three months and nine months ended September 26, 2009, respectively, which
were classified as restructuring charges.
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In addition, zero and $1.4 million in accelerated depreciation expense; $1.5 million and $4.8 million in other costs associated with the transfer of
production from the Chaska facility; and $0.9 million and $1.6 million related to other workforce reductions were recorded and classified as
restructuring charges for the three months and nine months ended September 26, 2009, respectively. The Company expects to incur
approximately $1.5 million of restructuring costs in the fourth quarter of 2009, mainly related to the transfer of production within the Micro
Environments segment.

Selling, general and administrative expense reductions

In March 2008, the Company terminated approximately 75 employees associated with efforts to adjust the Company�s operations to changing
business conditions. In connection with this action, the Company recorded charges of $0.7 million and $4.8 million for the three months and
nine months ended September 27, 2008 ($4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2008) for employee severance and retention costs
(generally over the employees� required remaining term of service) that were primarily classified as selling, general and administrative expenses.

8. REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT

On March 2, 2009, the Company amended and restated its credit agreement (as amended from time to time, the Restated Credit Agreement) with
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as agent, and certain other banks. The Restated Credit Agreement provided for a maximum $150.0
million revolving credit facility maturing November 1, 2011, replacing the Company�s previous $230.0 million revolving credit facility maturing
February 15, 2013.

Under the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement, the initial revolving commitment amount was $150 million, with $11.0 million unavailable
without the consent of a majority of lenders. The Company�s ability to borrow was further restricted by a borrowing base, which is adjusted
based on the Company�s levels of qualifying domestic accounts receivable, inventories and value of its property, plant and equipment.

On July 17, 2009, the Company amended the Restated Credit Agreement with its lenders. The amendment adjusts the manner in which the
Company calculates the fixed asset component of its borrowing base under the Restated Credit Agreement. The adjustment to the fixed asset
component of the borrowing base includes step-downs in the Company�s fixed asset valuation as of the last day of fiscal October 2009, January
2010 and April 2010 of $4.0 million, $4.0 million and $3.2 million, respectively. The step-downs in fixed asset valuation could result in the
overall borrowing cap being adjusted downward over time, depending on fluctuations to the Company�s other borrowing base components. The
July amendment also permitted the acquisition of Pureline Co. Ltd. as described in Note 2 above.

On August 11, 2009, the Company amended its Restated Credit Agreement with its lenders. Prior to the August 11, 2009 amendment to the
Restated Credit Agreement, the Company was prohibited from issuing debt securities and was required to use 100% of the net proceeds received
in any equity offering to prepay amounts outstanding under the Restated Credit Agreement. In addition, the borrowing base and, therefore, the
funds available to the Company under the Agreement, would have been reduced by 100% of the net proceeds of any equity offering, but the
revolving commitment amounts would not have been affected.

The August 11, 2009 amendment permits the Company to issue unsecured convertible debt securities (Qualifying Debt Offering) subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions, which include, among others, the Company�s compliance with the financial covenants contained in the Restated
Credit Agreement and the receipt by the Company of at least $75.0 million in net proceeds from the offering. The Company will be required to
use 100% of the net proceeds from any Qualifying Debt Offering or equity offering to prepay amounts outstanding under the Agreement. In
addition, the borrowing base was amended to provide that it will be reduced by (i) 50% of the net proceeds of any Qualifying Debt Offering or
equity offering received by the Company on or before August 15, 2010 and (ii) 100% of the net proceeds of any Qualifying Debt Offering or
equity offering received by the Company thereafter. The borrowing base will not be reduced by more than $65 million in total in the event of
any such offering(s). In addition, the revolving commitment amounts under the Restated Credit Agreement will be reduced by 50% of the
receipts of any Qualifying Debt Offering or equity offering received by the Company on or before August 15, 2010.

12

Edgar Filing: ENTEGRIS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 19



Table of Contents

As described in Note 13 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on September 16, 2009, the Company issued 16.1 million shares of
common stock for $3.80 per share in a registered public offering. The Company received net proceeds of $56.7 million after deducting
underwriting fees and other offering costs of $4.5 million. All of these proceeds were applied to pay down the outstanding balance under the
Restated Credit Agreement. In addition, under the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement, as per the August 11, 2009 revision, the revolving
commitment decreased by 50% of the net proceeds, or $28.3 million, to $121.7 million. $11.0 million of revolving commitment can not be
borrowed unless a majority of the lenders consent. The revolving commitment is further restricted by the Company�s borrowing base.

The Company had outstanding borrowings under the Restated Credit Agreement of approximately $67.4 million as of September 26, 2009, with
an additional $1.3 million undrawn on outstanding letters of credit. The Company�s borrowing base supported $106.5 million in total availability
as of September 26, 2009.

The full amount outstanding under the Agreement is due on November 1, 2011, unless paid prior to that date. While the Restated Credit
Agreement allows the Company some flexibility to raise additional capital, there is no assurance that adequate additional capital would be
available on reasonable terms, on a timely basis or at all.

The financial covenants in the Restated Credit Agreement replaced those in the prior credit agreement. Through September 26, 2009, the
Company was in compliance with all applicable debt covenants of the Restated Credit Agreement.

The Restated Credit Agreement requires that the Company not exceed certain negative year-to-date EBITDA amounts in 2009 and that the
Company exceed certain positive year-to-date EBITDA amounts at prescribed levels on a monthly basis through March 2010. Under the
Restated Credit Agreement EBITDA is calculated by adding consolidated net income attributable to Entegris, Inc., depreciation, amortization,
share-based compensation expense, interest expense, income taxes, non-cash gains and losses, extraordinary gains and losses, non-recurring
expenses associated with a permitted acquisition, foreign exchange expense and certain expenses related to the Restated Credit Agreement.
Non-cash gains and losses include adjustments to the Company�s excess and obsolete inventory reserves and allowances for doubtful accounts,
and impairment charges of long-lived assets and investments. In addition, the credit agreement allows the add-back of up to $1.0 million in
restructuring charges.

The EBITDA covenant levels required by the Restated Credit Agreement are indicated in the table below. The Company�s actual year-to-date
EBITDA, as defined by the Restated Credit Agreement, was $(8.3) million at September 26, 2009.

Period ending (In thousands)
Fiscal 2009 year-to-date EBITDA levels
September 2009 (62,000) 
October 2009 (62,000) 
November 2009 (62,000) 
December 2009 (56,000) 
Fiscal 2010 year-to-date EBITDA levels
January 2010 $ (3,000) 
February 2010 2,000
March 2010 7,000

Beginning in the second quarter of 2010, the foregoing minimum EBITDA covenants expire, and the Restated Credit Agreement requires that
the Company maintain a cash flow leverage ratio of no more than 3.0 to 1.0 and a fixed charge coverage ratio no lower than 1.5 to 1.0. The cash
flow leverage ratio measures the sum of short-term borrowings, long-term debt and capital lease obligations divided by the most recent two
fiscal quarters� EBITDA (as defined above) multiplied by two. The fixed charge coverage ratio measures the sum of EBITDA (as defined above)
and lease expense less the sum of capital expenditures and income tax payments, which figure in turn is divided by the sum of interest expense,
lease expense and scheduled principal payments.
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In addition to the financial metric covenants required under the Restated Credit Agreement, the Company�s is restricted from making capital
expenditures in excess of $16.0 million in 2009 and $20.0 million in 2010. The Company must also maintain a minimum of $25.0 million in
domestic cash balances under the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement.

Under the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement, the Company may elect that the loans comprising each borrowing bear interest at a rate per
annum equal to either (a) the sum of 4.25% plus a base rate equal to the highest of: (i) the prime rate then in effect, (ii) the Federal Funds rate
then in effect plus 1.25%, (iii) the one-month LIBOR rate then in effect plus 1.25% or (iv) 3.25%; or (b) the sum of 5.25% plus the greater of the
LIBOR rate then in effect or 1.50%. These interest rates may be increased by 2.25% if the Company�s fiscal year-to-date EBITDA loss for the
period ending on the dates below is greater than the amount indicated in the table below:

Period ending (In thousands)
September 2009 (46,000) 
October 2009 (46,000) 
November 2009 (45,000) 
December 2009 (39,000) 

As of September 26, 2009, the weighted average interest rate on outstanding borrowings under the Restated Credit Agreement was 6.75%. In
addition, the Company pays a commitment fee of 0.75% on the unborrowed commitments under the Restated Credit Agreement.

The Company�s borrowings are guaranteed by all its subsidiaries that are treated as domestic for tax purposes and secured by a first-priority
security interest in all assets owned by the borrowers or such domestic guarantors, except that the collateral shall include only 65% of the voting
stock owned by the borrowers or a domestic subsidiary of each subsidiary which is treated as foreign for tax purposes.

Voluntary prepayments and commitment reductions are permitted, in whole or in part, in minimum amounts without penalty, other than
customary breakage costs with respect to LIBOR borrowings. Mandatory prepayments of the revolving loan, but not commitment reductions,
must be made with the proceeds of asset sales, insurance and condemnation recoveries and certain extraordinary receipts.

At all times the borrowers and guarantors must maintain certain minimum cash and cash equivalents. The Restated Credit Agreement also
includes limitations on the amount of cash and cash equivalents of the Company and its foreign subsidiaries.

In addition, the Restated Credit Agreement includes negative covenants, subject to exceptions, restricting or limiting the Company�s ability and
the ability of its subsidiaries to, among other things, sell assets; make capital expenditures; alter the business the Company conducts; engage in
mergers, acquisitions and other business combinations; declare dividends or redeem or repurchase capital stock; incur, assume or permit to exist
additional indebtedness or guarantees; make loans and investments; make acquisitions; incur liens; and enter into transactions with affiliates.

The Restated Credit Agreement also contains customary provisions relating to representations and warranties, affirmative covenants and events
of default, including payment defaults, breach of representations and warranties, covenant defaults, certain events of bankruptcy, certain events
under ERISA, material judgments, cross defaults and changes in control. If an event of default occurs, the lenders under the Restated Credit
Agreement would be entitled to take various actions, including ceasing to make further advances, accelerating the maturity of amounts
outstanding under the Restated Credit Agreement and all other remedial actions permitted to be taken by a secured creditor.
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9. OTHER EXPENSE, NET

Other expense, net consists of the following:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Loss on foreign currency remeasurement $ (4,070) $ (661) $ (748) $ (984) 
Impairment loss on equity investments �  (313) �  (1,102) 
Other, net (44) 27 319 263

Other expense, net $ (4,114) $ (947) $ (429) $ (1,823) 

The losses on foreign currency remeasurement for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009 mainly reflect foreign
currency transaction effects of the remeasurement of yen-denominated assets and liabilities held by the Company�s U.S. entity.

In June 2008, the Company invested an additional $1.0 million in a privately held chemical mechanical planarization (CMP) pad company.
Based upon the pricing of this investment, the Company determined that its previous investment of $1.5 million in this same company was
partially impaired. Accordingly, the Company recognized an impairment loss of $0.8 million in the second quarter of 2008.

The Company also recognized an impairment loss of $0.3 million in the third quarter of 2008 on another equity investment.

10. INCOME TAXES

Income tax (benefit) expense differs from the expected amounts based upon the statutory federal tax rates as follows:

Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Expected federal income tax at statutory rate $ (25,227) $ (128,753) 
State income taxes before valuation allowance, net of federal tax
effect (1,250) (993) 
Effect of foreign source loss (income) 5,946 (1,735) 
Nondeductible goodwill �  119,182
Valuation allowance 17,228 26,924
Other items, net (923) 1,687

Income tax (benefit) expense $ (4,226) $ 16,312

In 2009, the Company�s tax rate was lower than U.S. statutory rates, mainly due to the $17.3 million increase in the Company�s U.S. deferred tax
asset valuation allowance. Management concluded that it is not more likely than not that the Company will realize certain deferred tax assets
associated with 2009 domestic operating losses to date, and thus provided an allowance for the portion of deferred tax assets that management
concluded will not be utilized. The Company also reduced its foreign valuation allowance by $0.1 million.

In 2008, the Company�s tax rate was lower than U.S. statutory rates mainly attributable to two factors. The Company recorded a $379.8 million
goodwill impairment charge in the quarter ended September 27, 2008. Most of the Company�s goodwill was not deductible for income tax
purposes. Accordingly, the Company recognized a tax benefit of only $14.8 million in connection with the goodwill impairment charge.

Also during the three-month period ended September 27, 2008, the Company recorded a $26.9 million valuation allowance against its deferred
tax assets. The realization of these assets is dependent on future U.S. taxable income which, at September 27, 2008, in management�s estimate,
was not more likely than not to be achieved.
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investments made by the Company, income from certain manufacturing activities in Malaysia is exempt from income taxes. The effective tax
rate is also affected by lower tax rates in certain of the Company�s taxable jurisdictions.

11. LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table presents a reconciliation of the denominators used in the computation of basic and diluted loss earnings per common share
attributable to Entegris, Inc.

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Basic�weighted common shares outstanding 115,023 111,796 113,355 112,492
Weighted common shares assumed upon exercise of stock options
and vesting of restricted common stock �  �  �  �  

Diluted�weighted common shares and common shares equivalent
outstanding 115,023 111,796 113,355 112,492

The effect of the inclusion of stock options and unvested restricted common stock for the three-month and nine-month periods ended
September 26, 2009 and September 27, 2008, respectively, would have been anti-dilutive.

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company changed its financial segment reporting to reflect management and organizational changes made by the
Company. Periods prior to 2009 have been restated to reflect the basis of segmentation presented below (see the Company�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8, 2009). The Company�s three reportable operating segments are
business divisions that provide unique products and services. Effective January 1, 2009, each operating segment is separately managed and has
separate financial information evaluated regularly by the Company�s chief operating decision maker in determining resource allocation and
assessing performance.

The Company�s financial reporting segments are Contamination Control Solutions (CCS), Micro Environments (ME), and Entegris Specialty
Materials (ESM).

� CCS: provides a wide range of products and subsystems that purify, monitor and deliver critical liquids and gases used in the
semiconductor manufacturing process.

� ME: provides products that protect wafers, reticles and electronic components at various stages of transport, processing and storage
related to semiconductor manufacturing.

� ESM: provides specialized graphite components used in semiconductor equipment and offers low-temperature, plasma-enhanced
chemical vapor deposition coatings of critical components of semiconductor manufacturing equipment used in various stages of the
manufacturing process as well as graphite and silicon graphite for certain critical industrial markets.

Inter-segment sales are not significant. Segment profit is defined as net sales less direct segment operating expenses, excluding certain
unallocated expenses, consisting mainly of general and administrative costs for the Company�s human resources, finance and information
technology functions, interest expense, amortization of intangible assets, charges for the fair market value write-up of acquired inventory sold
and restructuring charges.
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Summarized financial information for the Company�s reportable segments is shown in the following table:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Net sales
CCS $ 65,649 $ 85,806 $ 147,477 $ 267,807
ME 32,445 47,630 73,303 156,359
ESM 12,612 12,353 31,540 17,797

Total net sales $ 110,706 $ 145,789 $ 252,320 $ 441,963

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Segment profit (loss)
CCS $ 12,261 $ 20,911 $ 7,182 $ 68,053
ME 5,186 6,855 (5,016) 24,225
ESM 1,369 3,832 939 5,853

Total segment profit (loss) $ 18,816 $ 31,598 $ 3,105 $ 98,131

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
December 31,

2008
Total assets
CCS $ 187,327 $ 198,991
ME 92,536 92,452
ESM 122,842 134,998
Corporate 115,324 171,383

Total assets $ 518,029 $ 597,824

Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, assets held for sale, investments, deferred tax assets and deferred tax charges.

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Depreciation and amortization
CCS $ 5,595 $ 5,839 $ 16,800 $ 18,124
ME 2,581 2,663 7,677 8,448
ESM 2,890 1,800 9,011 3,205
Corporate 1,112 1,032 4,775 3,496

Total depreciation and amortization $ 12,178 $ 11,334 $ 38,263 $ 33,273
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(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Capital expenditures
CCS $ 6,392 $ 6,052
ME 3,205 8,924
ESM 492 423
Corporate 1,432 3,795

Total capital expenditures $ 11,521 $ 19,194
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The following table reconciles total segment profit to operating income:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Total segment profit $ 18,816 $ 31,598 $ 3,105 $ 98,131
Amortization of intangibles (4,723) (4,858) (14,635) (14,497) 
Restructuring charges (2,368) (3,332) (12,454) (3,332) 
Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory sold (51) (5,718) (4,116) (5,718) 
Impairment of goodwill �  (379,810) �  (379,810) 
Unallocated general and administrative expenses (11,738) (16,139) (35,367) (60,087) 

Operating loss $ (64) $ (378,259) $ (63,467) $ (365,313) 

The following table presents amortization of intangibles, restructuring charges and charges for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory sold:

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008

Amortization of intangibles
CCS $ 3,292 $ 3,695 $ 10,160 $ 11,787
ME 159 178 489 528
ESM 1,272 985 3,986 2,182

$ 4,723 $ 4,858 $ 14,635 $ 14,497

Restructuring charges
CCS $ 250 $ 424 $ 2,454 $ 424
ME 1,178 128 6,350 128
ESM (37) �  140 �  
Corporate 977 2,780 3,510 2,780

$ 2,368 $ 3,332 $ 12,454 $ 3,332

Charge for fair value mark-up of acquired inventory sold
CCS $ 51 $ �  $ 51 $ �  
ESM �  5,718 4,065 5,718

$ 51 $ 5,718 $ 4,116 $ 5,718

13. EQUITY OFFERING

On September 16, 2009, the Company issued 16.1 million shares of common stock for $3.80 per share in a registered public offering. The
Company received net proceeds of $56.7 million after deducting underwriting fees and other offering costs of $4.5 million. As required by the
terms of the Company�s revolving credit facility, the proceeds were used to reduce the amount outstanding under the Company�s revolving credit
facility.

14. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Accounting Standards Codification�
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In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2009-01, Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (ASC Topic 105) which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (the Codification or ASC) as the
official single source of authoritative U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). All existing accounting standards are superseded.
All other
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accounting guidance not included in the Codification will be considered non-authoritative. The Codification also includes all relevant Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) guidance organized using the same topical structure in separate sections within the Codification.

Following the Codification, the Board will not issue new standards in the form of Statements, FASB Staff Positions or Emerging Issues Task
Force Abstracts. Instead, it will issue Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) which will serve to update the Codification, provide background
information about the guidance and provide the basis for conclusions on the changes to the Codification.

The Codification is not intended to change GAAP, but it will change the way GAAP is organized and presented. The Codification is effective
for the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the period ended September 26, 2009 and the principal impact on
the financial statements is limited to disclosures as all future references to authoritative accounting literature will be referenced in accordance
with the Codification. In order to ease the transition to the Codification, the Company is providing the Codification cross-reference alongside the
references to the standards issued and adopted prior to the adoption of the Codification.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) Business Combinations (ASC Topic 805). This guidance retains the
fundamental requirements of the original pronouncement requiring that the purchase method be used for all business combinations and defines
the acquirer as the entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in the business combination, establishes the acquisition date as the date
that the acquirer achieves control and requires the acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest at
their fair values as of the acquisition date. The guidance also requires that acquisition-related costs be recognized separately from the acquisition.
This guidance was effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2009 and was followed by the Company in its accounting for the acquisition
described in Note 2 to condensed consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC Topic 810). This
guidance clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary should be reported as equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Consolidated net income should include the net income for both the parent and the noncontrolling interest with disclosure of both amounts on
the consolidated statement of income. The calculation of earnings per share will continue to be based on income amounts attributable to the
parent. This guidance was effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2009 and was followed by the Company in its accounting for the
acquisition described in Note 2 to condensed consolidated financial statements.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events (ASC Topic 855). This guidance establishes general standards of accounting
for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. This
guidance was effective for the Company in the second quarter of 2009 and its adoption did not have a material impact on the Company�s
condensed consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46(R) (ASC Topic 810). This guidance amends certain
requirements to improve financial reporting by enterprises involved with variable interest entities and to provide more relevant and reliable
information to users of financial statements. This guidance is effective for the Company in 2010 and the Company does not expect its adoption
to have a material effect on the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued the following ASU No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (ASC Topic 605)�Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements, a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force. This guidance modifies the fair value requirements of ASC subtopic
605-25 Revenue Recognition-Multiple Element Arrangements by allowing the use of the �best estimate of selling price� for determining the selling
price of a deliverable. A vendor is now required to use its best estimate of the selling price when vendor specific objective evidence or
third-party evidence of the selling price cannot be determined. In addition, the residual method of allocating arrangement consideration is no
longer permitted. This guidance is effective for the Company in 2011. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this update
on its condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

This overview is not a complete discussion of the Company�s financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations; it is
intended merely to facilitate an understanding of the most salient aspects of its financial condition and operating performance and to provide a
context for the discussion that follows. The detailed discussion and analysis that follows must be read in its entirety in order to fully understand
the Company�s financial condition and results of operations.

Entegris, Inc. is a leading provider of products and services that purify, protect and transport the critical materials used in key technology-driven
industries. Entegris derives most of its revenue from the sale of products and services to the semiconductor and data storage industries. The
Company�s customers consist primarily of semiconductor manufacturers, semiconductor equipment and materials suppliers, and hard disk
manufacturers, which are served through direct sales efforts, as well as sales and distribution relationships, in the United States, Asia, Europe
and the Middle East.

The Company offers a diverse product portfolio which includes more than 15,000 standard and customized products that we believe provide the
most comprehensive offering of materials integrity management products and services to the microelectronics industry. Certain of these products
are unit-driven and consumable products that rely on the level of semiconductor manufacturing activity to drive growth, while others rely on
expansion of manufacturing capacity to drive growth. The Company�s unit-driven and consumable product class includes wafer shippers, disk
shipping containers and test assembly and packaging products, membrane-based liquid filters and housings, metal-based gas filters and
resin-based gas purifiers, as well as PVA roller brushes for use in post-CMP cleaning applications. The Company�s capital expense-driven
products include its process carriers that protect the integrity of in-process wafers, components, systems and subsystems that use
electro-mechanical, pressure differential and related technologies to permit semiconductor and other electronics manufacturers to monitor and
control the flow and condition of process liquids used in these manufacturing processes. With its August 2008 acquisition of Poco Graphite, Inc.
(POCO), the Company added process-critical, graphite-based consumables and finished products used in a variety of markets to its portfolio of
products.

The Company�s fiscal year is the calendar period ending each December 31. The Company�s fiscal quarters consist of 13-week periods that end
on Saturday. The Company�s fiscal quarters in 2009 end March 28, 2009, June 27, 2009, September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2009. Unaudited
information for the three months and nine months ended September 26, 2009 and the financial position as of September 26, 2009 and
December 31, 2008 are included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Forward-Looking Statements

The information in this Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, except for the historical
information, contains forward-looking statements. These statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements
could differ materially from actual results. The Company assumes no obligation to publicly release the results of any revision or updates to these
forward-looking statements to reflect future events or unanticipated occurrences. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with
the condensed consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in this report.

Key operating factors Key factors, which management believes have the largest impact on the overall results of operations of Entegris, Inc.,
include:

� Level of sales Since a large portion of the Company�s product costs (except for raw materials, purchased components and direct
labor) are largely fixed in the short to medium term, an increase or decrease in sales affects gross profits and overall profitability
significantly. Also, increases or decreases in sales and operating profitability affect certain costs such as incentive compensation and
commissions, which are highly variable in nature. The Company�s sales are subject to the effects of industry cyclicality, technological
change and substantial competition, including pricing pressures and foreign currency effects.
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� Variable margin on sales The Company�s variable margin on sales is determined by selling prices and the costs of manufacturing and
raw materials. This is also affected by a number of factors, which include the Company�s sales mix, purchase prices of raw material
(especially resin and purchased components), competition, both domestic and international, direct labor costs, and the efficiency of
the Company�s production operations, among others.

� Fixed cost structure Increases or decreases in sales have a large impact on profitability. There are a number of large fixed or
semi-fixed cost components, which include salaries, indirect labor and benefits, facility costs, lease expense, and depreciation and
amortization. It is not possible to vary these costs easily in the short term as volumes fluctuate. Thus changes in sales volumes can
affect the usage and productivity of these cost components and can have a large effect on the Company�s results of operations.

Overall Summary of Financial Results for the Three Months and Nine Months Ended September 26, 2009

For the three months ended September 26, 2009, net sales decreased by $35.1 million, or 24%, to $110.7 million compared to the three months
ended September 27, 2008, primarily reflecting the continuation of the severe downturn in both the capital and unit-driven segments of the
semiconductor industry that began during the second half of 2008. The third quarter sales decline was mitigated by the full-quarter inclusion of
incremental sales of $5.1 million from POCO Graphite (POCO), which was acquired in August 2008. The sales decline included an unfavorable
foreign currency translation effect of $0.3 million related to the year-over-year weakening of most international currencies versus the U.S.
dollar, most notably the Korean won and Taiwanese dollar, offset partially by the further strengthening of the Japanese yen. Excluding those
factors, third quarter sales fell 27% in 2009 when compared to 2008.

On a sequential basis, third quarter sales rose 34% from second quarter sales of $82.6 million, reflecting the continuation of a modest upturn in
bookings and sales of the Company�s products that began in the second quarter of 2009. However, third quarter net sales were still well below
pre-recessionary levels.

Net sales for the first nine months of 2009 were $252.3 million, down 43% from $442.0 million in the comparable year-ago period, indicative of
the same factors noted above. The year-to-date sales decline was mitigated by the full nine-month inclusion of sales of $22.4 million from
POCO. The sales decline included an unfavorable foreign currency translation effect of $6.7 million related to the year-over-year weakening of
most international currencies versus the U.S. dollar, most notably the Korean won, Taiwanese dollar and the Euro, offset partially by the
strengthening of the Japanese yen. Excluding those factors, sales for the first nine months of 2009 fell 46% when compared to 2008.

In the Company�s view, the business and industry downturn reached a trough during the first quarter of 2009. During the second and third
quarters, the Company experienced a modest upturn in bookings and sales of certain of its unit-driven, consumable products. This upturn was
predominantly driven by Asian foundry customers, particularly in Taiwan. In the third quarter, an indication of recovery in the Company�s
capital-driven product lines was discernible. Based on bookings for future deliveries, the Company expects the upturn in the consumable side of
the business to continue through the remainder of 2009 and into 2010, and a modest increase in volume for its capital-driven product lines. To
date, the Company believes the revenue downturn is primarily volume driven. Based on the available information, the Company does not
perceive any significant market share loss or material sales price erosion. Additionally, given that no single customer accounts for more than 6%
of the Company�s annual revenue, business recovery is not predicated on any one particular customer or group of customers, but rather on the
overall semiconductor sector returning to pre-recessionary levels.

The Company reported lower gross profits for both the three-month and nine-month periods compared to a year earlier. The gross profit decline
for the three-month period was primarily due to the significant year-over-year sales decrease. The gross profit decline for the nine-month period,
in addition to the effect of the significant year-over-year sales decrease, reflected lower factory utilization associated with the lower sales,
resulting in manufacturing production falling below normal capacity.
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The gross margin rate for the third quarter of 2009 was 40.4% versus 38.0% for the third quarter of 2008 and 28.7% for the three months ended
June 27, 2009. The year-over-year gross margin improvement was primarily due to the absence of a $5.7 million incremental charge associated
with the fair market value write-up of inventory acquired in the acquisition of POCO recorded in the third quarter of 2008. Excluding that factor,
gross margin a year ago was 41.9%. The decline, measured on an adjusted basis, mainly reflects the significant year-over-year sales decrease.
Gross margin for the first nine months of the year was 29.1% compared to 40.6% in the comparable period a year ago, also reflects the lower
factory utilization in the first half of 2009 associated with the significant year-over-year sales decreases.

The Company included period expense in cost of sales of $0.4 million and $10.5 million, respectively, in the three-month and nine-month
periods ended September 26, 2009, associated with its below-capacity production levels. In the first nine months of 2009, the Company also
recorded a $4.1 million incremental charge associated with the fair market value write-up of inventory acquired in the 2008 acquisition of POCO
and third quarter of 2009 acquisition of Pureline.

The Company had lower year-over-year selling, general and administrative (SG&A) and engineering, research and development (ER&D) costs
for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009 when compared to the year-ago periods, mainly reflecting lower payroll
and benefits costs resulting from headcount reductions.

The Company also incurred restructuring charges of $2.4 million and $12.5 million in the three months and nine months ended September 26,
2009 in connection with business restructuring activities and actions taken in response to the downturn in the semiconductor industry.

The Company reported a net loss from continuing operations of $7.6 million for the three-month period ended September 26, 2009, compared to
a loss from continuing operations of $392.9 million in the year-ago period, with a net loss from continuing operations of $67.9 million for the
nine-month period comparing to a loss from continuing operations of $384.2 million in the year-ago period. The net losses in the three-month
and nine-month periods ended September 27, 2008 included a goodwill impairment charge of $379.8 million ($365.2 million, net of tax).

During the nine months ended September 26, 2009, the Company�s operating activities used cash of $7.1 million. Cash and cash equivalents were
$78.4 million at September 26, 2009 compared with $115.0 million at December 31, 2008.

As described in Note 8 to the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company executed a new revolving credit agreement
(Restated Credit Agreement) on March 2, 2009, which expires in November 2011. The Restated Credit Agreement was amended on July 17,
2009 and August 11, 2009. The initial revolving commitment amount under the Restated Credit Agreement was $150.0 million, with $11.0
million unavailable without consent of a majority of the Company�s lenders. The revolving commitment was further subject to a borrowing base.
In accordance with the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement, after the receipt of net proceeds of $56.7 million from a registered public
offering on September 16, 2009, the revolving commitment decreased by 50% of the net proceeds of the offering, or $28.3 million, to $121.7
million, with $11.0 million unavailable without consent of a majority of the Company�s lenders. The Company�s borrowing base supported
$106.5 million in total availability as of September 26, 2009, with $67.4 million in borrowings and $1.3 million undrawn on letters of credit then
outstanding under the Restated Credit Agreement.

The Restated Credit Agreement requires that the Company meet various financial covenants. Through September 26, 2009, the Company has
been in compliance with all financial covenants required by the Restated Credit Agreement.

The global credit market crisis has created a very difficult business environment since October 2008. The Company�s operating performance, as
well as its liquidity position, has been and continues to be negatively affected by these economic conditions, many of which are beyond its
control. The Company does not believe it is likely that these adverse economic conditions, and their effect on the semiconductor industry, will
improve to pre-recessionary status in the near term. However, the effect of the current global economic environment on the semiconductor
industry requires that the Company maintain its near-term liquidity support.
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The Company believes that its cash and cash equivalents and funds available under the Restated Credit Agreement and international credit
facilities will be sufficient to meet its working capital and investment requirements for the next twelve months. If available liquidity is not
sufficient to meet the Company�s operating and debt service obligations as they come due, management�s plans include further reducing
expenditures as necessary or pursuing alternative arrangements through additional equity or debt financing in order to meet the Company�s cash
requirements for the next twelve months. However, given recent economic events and the resulting credit shortage, there can be no assurance
that any such financing would be available on commercially acceptable terms.

Critical Accounting Policies Management�s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon the
Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements requires the Company to make estimates, assumptions
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. At each balance sheet date, management evaluates its estimates, including, but not limited to, those related to accounts receivable,
warranty and sales return obligations, inventories, long-lived assets, income taxes, business combinations and shared-based compensation. The
Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the current and
projected economic circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The critical
accounting policies affected most significantly by estimates, assumptions and judgments used in the preparation of the Company�s condensed
consolidated financial statements are discussed below.

Net Sales The Company�s net sales consist of revenue from sales of products net of trade discounts and allowances. The Company recognizes
revenue upon shipment, primarily FOB shipping point, when evidence of an arrangement exists, contractual obligations have been satisfied, title
and risk of loss have been transferred to the customer and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured based upon historical
collection results and regular credit evaluations. In most transactions, the Company has no obligations to its customers after the date products are
shipped other than pursuant to warranty obligations. In the event that significant post-shipment obligations or uncertainties exist such as
customer acceptance, revenue recognition is deferred as appropriate until such obligations are fulfilled or the uncertainties are resolved.

Accounts Receivable-Related Valuation Accounts The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts and for sales returns and
allowances. Significant management judgments and estimates must be made and used in connection with establishing these valuation accounts.
Material differences could result in the amount and timing of the Company�s results of operations for any period if management made different
judgments or utilized different estimates. In addition, actual results could be different from the Company�s current estimates, possibly resulting in
increased future charges to earnings.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for all individual receivables judged to be unlikely for collection. For all other
accounts receivable, the Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on a combination of factors. Specifically, management
considers the age of receivable balances, historical bad debt write-off experience and current economic circumstances when determining its
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company�s allowance for doubtful accounts was $1.5 million at September 26, 2009 and $1.3 million at
December 31, 2008, respectively.

An allowance for sales returns and allowances is established based on historical and current trends in product returns. At September 26, 2009
and December 31, 2008, the Company�s reserve for sales returns and allowances was $0.9 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

Inventory Valuation The Company uses certain estimates and judgments to properly value inventory. In general, the Company�s inventories are
recorded at the lower of cost or market value. Each quarter, the Company evaluates its ending inventories for obsolescence and excess quantities.
This evaluation includes analyses of inventory levels, historical write-off trends, expected product lives, and sales levels by product. Inventories
that
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are considered obsolete are written off or a full allowance is recorded. In addition, allowances are established for inventory quantities in excess
of forecasted demand. Inventory allowances were $10.7 million and $8.3 million at September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively.

The Company�s inventories include materials and products subject to technological obsolescence, which are sold in highly competitive industries.
If future demand or market conditions are less favorable than current conditions or the Company�s planned outlook for improved sales levels,
additional inventory write-downs or allowances may be required and would be reflected in cost of sales in the period the revision is made.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets As of September 26, 2009, the Company had $146.7 million of net property, plant and equipment and $82.8
million of net intangible assets. The Company routinely considers whether indicators of impairment of the value of its assets, particularly its
molding equipment, and its intangible assets, are present. A long-lived asset (asset group) shall be tested for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances (triggering events) indicate that its carrying amount may not be recoverable. The following are examples of such
events or changes in circumstances:

a. A significant decrease in the market price of a long-lived asset (asset group)

b. A significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset (asset group) is being used or in its physical
condition

c. A significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate that could affect the value of a long-lived asset (asset group),
including an adverse action or assessment by a regulator

d. An accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of a long-lived
asset (asset group)

e. A current-period operating or cash flow loss combined with a history of operating or cash flow losses or a projection or forecast that
demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of a long-lived asset (asset group)

f. A current expectation that, more likely than not, a long-lived asset (asset group) will be sold or otherwise disposed of
significantly before the end of its previously estimated useful life.

If such indicators are present, it is determined whether the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows attributable to the asset group in
question is less than their carrying value. If less, an impairment loss is recognized based on the excess of the carrying amount of the asset group
over its respective fair value. Fair value is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows, appraisals or other methods deemed
appropriate. If the asset groups determined to be impaired are to be held and used, the Company recognizes an impairment charge to the extent
the fair value attributable to the asset group is less than the assets� carrying value. The fair value of the assets then becomes the assets� new
carrying value, which is depreciated or amortized over the remaining estimated useful life of the assets.

In connection with triggering events during the third and fourth quarters of 2008 and the first quarter of 2009, the Company reviewed its
long-lived assets and determined that none of its long-lived assets were impaired for its asset groups. The determination was based on reviewing
estimated undiscounted cash flows for the Company�s asset groups, which were greater than their carrying values. As required under U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, the impairment analyses for the third and fourth quarters of 2008 occurred before the goodwill
impairment assessments.

Long-lived assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level (asset groups) for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. The Company has four significant asset groups, identified by assessing the
Company�s identifiable cash flows and the interdependence of such cash flows: Contamination Control Solutions (CCS), Micro Environments
(ME), Poco Graphite (POCO) and Entegris Specialty Coatings (ESC).
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The Company�s estimate of undiscounted cash flows attributable to the asset groups included only future cash flows (cash inflows less associated
cash outflows) that are directly associated with and that are expected to arise as a direct result of the use and eventual disposition of the asset
group. Estimates of future cash flows used to test the recoverability of a long-lived asset (asset group) incorporated the Company�s assumptions
about its use of the asset group and were determined for the remaining useful life of the primary asset (the principal long-lived tangible asset
being depreciated or intangible asset being amortized
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that is the most significant component asset from which the asset group derives its cash-flow-generating capacity) of each asset group. The key
assumptions were projected revenues, gross margin expectations and operating cost estimates. Future cash flows used to test the recoverability
of each asset group were made for the remaining useful life of the asset group, which itself is based on the remaining useful life of the primary
asset of each group as described below. Where the primary asset is not the asset of the asset group with the longest remaining useful life,
estimates of future cash flows for the group assume the sale of the group at the end of the remaining useful life of the primary asset.

The recoverability test included all cash outflows that the asset group is estimated to incur to obtain the estimated future cash inflows.
Accordingly, where required, the Company reflected within the cash flows of its asset groups an allocation of corporate expenses to its asset
groups, because those assets require the services provided by the Company�s shared services infrastructure (among others, finance, human
resources, information technology, sales and marketing, legal) if the asset group were operated on a stand-alone basis.

Under the first quarter 2009 impairment test, all asset groups had future undiscounted cash flows in excess of their carrying values by at least
60%, except for the ME asset group, which the Company estimated had a fair value 27% higher than its carrying value. The carrying values of
this asset group�s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at March 28, 2009 were $42.9 million and $1.2 million, respectively. If
either revenue for the Company�s asset groups decreased from the then-current forecast without offsetting decreases in costs, or if the asset
group�s operating costs increased from the then-current forecast without offsetting increases in revenue, the estimated undiscounted cash flows of
the asset groups could have been less than their carrying values. This would have required an impairment loss to be recognized based on the
excess of the carrying amount of the respective asset group over its fair value. As noted, fair value would be determined by discounting
estimated future cash flows, appraisals or other methods deemed appropriate.

As described above, the evaluation of the recoverability of long-lived assets requires the Company to make significant estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions primarily include, but are not limited to, the identification of the asset group at the lowest level of
independent cash flows and the primary asset of the group and long-range forecasts of revenue and costs, reflecting management�s assessment of
general economic and industry conditions, operating income, depreciation and amortization and working capital requirements.

Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates, particularly in the current economic environment and forecast of a recovery,
actual results could differ from those estimates. In addition, changes in the underlying assumptions would have a significant impact on the
conclusion that an asset group�s carrying value is recoverable, or the determination of any impairment charge if it was determined that the asset
values were indeed impaired.

Based on slightly improved economic conditions within the semiconductor industry and the absence of any other triggering events, the Company
was not required to perform impairment testing for any of its asset groups for the second and third quarters of 2009. Due to the uncertain
economic environment within the semiconductor industry, the Company will continue to monitor circumstances and events to determine whether
additional asset impairment testing is warranted. It is not unlikely that in the future the Company may no longer be able to conclude that there is
no impairment of its long-lived assets, nor can the Company provide assurance that material impairment charges of long-lived assets will not
occur in future periods.

Income Taxes In the preparation of the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements, management is required to estimate income
taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. This process involves estimating actual current tax expense together with
assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred
tax assets and liabilities, which are included in the Company�s consolidated balance sheet.

The Company has significant amounts of deferred tax assets. Management reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability on a quarterly basis
and assesses the need for valuation allowances. Management considers the positive and negative evidence for the potential utilization of its
deferred tax assets. When management concludes that it is not more likely than not that the Company will realize certain deferred tax assets in
the future, it records a valuation allowance for the portion of deferred tax assets management concluded will not be utilized.
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As a result of the recent general economic and industry declines, and their impact on the Company�s future outlook, management has reviewed its
U.S. deferred tax assets and concluded that the uncertainties related to the realization of its deferred tax assets have become unfavorable. The
Company had U.S. net deferred tax asset positions of $58.7 million and $42.3 million as of September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively, which comprised temporary differences and various credit carryforwards. Management has concluded that it is not more likely than
not that the Company will realize the net deferred tax assets. Accordingly, the Company maintained valuation allowances of $58.6 million and
$42.1 million as of September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, with respect to U.S. deferred tax assets.

The negative evidence of a cumulative three-year U.S. operating loss, the expectation for U.S. operating results in early future years and a finite
carryforward period for the Company�s U.S. foreign tax credits was sufficiently significant to outweigh all identified positive evidence and tax
planning strategies.

The Company had net non-U.S. deferred tax asset positions before valuation allowance of $12.8 million and $12.5 million as of September 26,
2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively. At those dates, management determined that based upon the available evidence, a valuation
allowance was required against non-U.S. deferred tax assets in certain tax jurisdictions. Accordingly, the Company maintained valuation
allowances of $0.4 million and $0.6 million as of September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, with respect to certain non-U.S.
deferred tax assets. For other non-U.S. jurisdictions, principally Japan, management believes that it is more likely than not that the net deferred
tax assets will be realized as management expects sufficient future earnings in those jurisdictions.

In addition, the calculation of tax liabilities involves significant judgment in estimating the impact of uncertainties in the application of complex
tax laws. Resolution of these uncertainties in a manner inconsistent with management�s expectations could have a material impact on the
Company�s financial condition and operating results.

Warranty Claims Accrual The Company records a liability for estimated warranty claims. The amount of the accrual is based on historical
claims data by product group and other factors. Estimated claims could be materially different from actual results for a variety of reasons,
including a change in product failure rates and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure, manufacturing changes that could
impact product quality, or as yet unrecognized defects in products sold. At September 26, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company�s accrual
for estimated future warranty costs was $0.9 million and $1.1 million, respectively.

Business Acquisitions The Company accounts for acquired businesses using the acquisition method of accounting, which requires that the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recorded at the date of acquisition at their respective fair values. The judgments made in determining
the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset lives, can materially impact net income.

There are several methods that can be used to determine the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. For intangible assets, the
Company normally utilizes the �income method.� This method starts with a forecast of the expected future net cash flows. These cash flows are
then adjusted to present value by applying an appropriate discount rate that reflects the risk factors associated with the cash flow streams. Some
of the more significant estimates and assumptions inherent in the income method or other methods include the projected amount and timing of
future cash flows and the discount rate reflecting the risks inherent in the future cash flows.

Determining the useful life of an intangible asset also requires judgment. For example, different types of intangible assets will have different
useful lives, and certain assets may even be considered to have indefinite useful lives. All of these judgments and estimates can significantly
impact net income.
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Share-Based Compensation U.S generally accepted accounting principles require the measurement and recognition of compensation expense
for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors based on estimated fair values. The Company must estimate the value of
employee stock option and restricted stock awards on the date of grant.

The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards is valued based on the Company�s stock price on the date of grant. The fair
value of stock option awards is estimated on the date of grant using an option-pricing model affected by the Company�s stock price as well as
assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables include the expected stock price volatility over the
term of the awards, risk-free interest rate and dividend yield assumptions, and actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors and
forfeitures. Because share-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statement of operations is based on awards ultimately
expected to vest, it has been recorded net of estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are required to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures are estimated based on historical experience.

If the above factors change, and the Company uses different assumptions in future periods, the share-based compensation expense recorded may
differ significantly from what was recorded in the current period.

Certain restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards involve stock to be issued upon the achievement of performance conditions
(performance shares) under the Company�s stock incentive plans. Such performance shares become available subject to time-based vesting
conditions if, and to the extent that, financial performance criteria for the applicable fiscal year or multi-year period are achieved. Accordingly,
the number of performance shares earned will vary based on the level of achievement of financial performance objectives for the applicable
period. Until such time that the Company�s performance can ultimately be determined, each quarter the Company estimates the number of
performance shares more likely than not to be earned based on an evaluation of the probability of achieving the performance objectives. Such
estimates are revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods when the underlying factors change the Company�s evaluation of the probability of
achieving the performance objectives. Accordingly, share-based compensation expense associated with performance shares may differ
significantly from the amount recorded in the current period.
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Three and Nine Months Ended September 26, 2009 Compared To Three and Nine Months Ended September 27, 2008

The following table compares continuing operating results with year-ago results, as a percentage of sales, for each caption.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of sales 59.6 62.0 70.9 59.4

Gross profit 40.4 38.0 29.1 40.6
Selling, general and administrative
expenses 26.4 24.3 33.5 26.2
Engineering, research and development
expenses 7.7 7.1 10.0 7.0
Amortization of intangible assets 4.3 3.3 5.8 3.3
Impairment of goodwill �  260.5 �  85.9
Restructuring charges 2.1 2.3 4.9 0.8

Operating loss (0.1) (259.5) (25.2) (82.7) 
Interest expense, net (2.4) (0.4) (2.8) (0.2) 
Other expense, net (3.7) (0.6) (0.2) (0.4) 

Loss before income taxes and other items
below (6.2) (260.5) (28.1 (83.2) 
Income tax expense (benefit) 0.6 8.8 (1.7) 3.7
Equity in net loss of affiliates 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.0

Loss from continuing operations (6.9) (269.6) (26.9) (86.9) 

Net sales For the three months ended September 26, 2009, net sales decreased by $35.1 million, or 24%, to $110.7 million compared to the three
months ended September 27, 2008, primarily reflecting the continuation of the severe downturn in both the capital and unit-driven segments of
the semiconductor industry that began during the second half of 2008. The third quarter sales decline was mitigated by the full-quarter inclusion
of incremental sales of $5.1 million from POCO Graphite (POCO), which was acquired in August 2008. The sales decline included an
unfavorable foreign currency translation effect of $0.3 million related to the year-over-year weakening of most international currencies versus
the U.S. dollar, most notably the Korean won and Taiwanese dollar, offset partially by the strengthening of the Japanese yen. Excluding those
factors, third quarter sales fell 27% in 2009 when compared to 2008.

On a sequential basis, sales rose 34% from second quarter net sales of $82.6 million, reflecting a modest upturn in bookings and sales of the
Company�s products. However, third quarter net sales were still well below pre-recessionary levels.

Sales to semiconductor customers represented 71% of third quarter sales and reflected increases in fab utilization rates and wafer starts,
particularly for the Company�s Asian foundry customers. On an industry wide basis, the Company expects that fab utilization rates rose to
approximately 80% in the third quarter of calendar 2009 from less than 60% in the first quarter, when the entire industry was in a virtual
shutdown mode during much of the first quarter. Similarly, the Company�s third quarter sales were boosted by greater demand from wafer
growers, which responded to the increased fab production level. Despite a 48% increase in sales of capital-driven products, capital spending
among semiconductor customers remained below pre-recessionary levels.

Net sales for the first nine months of 2009 were $252.3 million, down 43% from net sales of $442.0 million in the comparable year-ago period,
indicative of the same factors noted above. The year-to-date sales decline was mitigated by the full nine-month inclusion of sales of $22.4
million from POCO. The sales decline included an unfavorable foreign currency translation effect of $6.7 million related to the year-over-year
weakening of most international currencies versus the U.S. dollar, most notably the Korean won, Taiwanese dollar and the Euro, offset partially
by the strengthening of the Japanese yen. Excluding those factors, sales for the first nine months of 2009 fell 46% when compared to 2008.
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To date, the Company believes the revenue downturn of the past several quarters is exclusively volume driven. Based on the information
available, the Company believes it has maintained market share for its products and that the effect of selling price erosion has been nominal.

For the quarter ended September 26, 2009, sales of unit-driven products represented 71% and sales of capital-driven products represented 29%
of total sales, respectively. For the third quarter of 2008 and the three months ended June 27, 2009 this split was 65%/35% and 74%/26%,
respectively. The year-over-year shift in relative demand toward unit-driven products reflects lower spending by semiconductor customers for
capital-driven, capacity-related products such as wafer carriers and liquid systems.

On a geographic basis, third quarter sales to North America were 31%, Asia (excluding Japan) 38%, Europe 12% and Japan 19% of total net
sales. This compared to third quarter sales figures of North America 32%, Asia 36%, Europe 13% and Japan 19% in 2008 and second quarter
2009 sales figures of North America 31%, Asia 35%, Europe 15% and Japan 19%.

Gross profit Gross profit in the three months ended September 26, 2009 decreased by $10.6 million to $44.8 million, a decline of 19% from
$55.4 million for the three months ended September 27, 2008. The gross margin rate for the third quarter of 2009 was 40.4% versus 38.0% for
the three months ended September 27, 2008 and 28.7% for the three months ended June 27, 2009.

For the first nine months of 2009, gross profit was $73.5 million, down 59% from gross profit of $179.3 million recorded in the first nine months
of 2008. As a percentage of net sales, gross margin for the first nine months of the year was 29.1% compared to 40.6% in the comparable period
a year ago.

The gross profit decline for the three-month period was primarily due to the significant year-over-year sales decrease. The gross profit decline
for the nine-month period, in addition to the effect of the significant year-over-year sales decrease, reflected lower factory utilization associated
with the lower sales, resulting in manufacturing production falling below normal capacity.

The gross margin rate improvement for the three-month period ended September 26, 2009 was primarily due to the absence of a $5.7 million
incremental charge associated with the fair market value write-up of inventory acquired in the acquisition of POCO recorded in the third quarter
of 2008. Excluding that factor, the gross margin rate a year ago was 41.9%. The decline, measured on an adjusted basis, mainly reflects the
significant year-over-year sales decrease.

The gross profit declines for the three-month and nine-month periods were primarily due to the significant year-over-year sales decrease, along
with lower factory utilization associated with the sales decrease during the first half of the year, which resulted in manufacturing production
falling below normal capacity. Accordingly, the Company included in cost of goods sold period expense of $0.4 million and $10.5 million in the
three-month and nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009, associated with below-capacity production levels. The Company also recorded
a $4.1 million incremental charge to cost of sales associated with the fair market value write-up of inventory acquired in the acquisition of
POCO in the first quarter of 2009. As noted above, the gross margin rates for the three months and nine months ended September 27, 2008
included a $5.7 million incremental charge related to the acquisition of POCO.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses decreased $6.2 million, or 18%, to $29.2
million in the three months ended September 26, 2009, down from $35.4 million in the comparable three-month period a year earlier. SG&A
expenses, as a percent of net sales, rose to 26.4% from 24.3% a year earlier. On a year-to-year basis, SG&A expenses fell by $31.2 million, or
27% to $84.6 million compared to $115.8 million a year earlier. On a year-to-date basis, SG&A costs, as a percent of net sales, rose to 33.5%
from 26.2% a year ago, reflecting the decrease in net sales.
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The year-over-year decrease in SG&A costs includes compensation-related reductions of $16.5 million, reduced travel expense of $2.5 million
and legal and professional services expense of $5.1 million, and a favorable foreign currency translation effect of $1.6 million. SG&A expenses
in the first nine months of 2008 included $4.2 million of severance-related costs due to personnel terminations associated with operational
streamlining efforts.

On a sequential basis, SG&A expenses rose $3.5 million, or 14%, mainly due to the reversal of salary reductions, the absence of employee
furloughs and the accrual of incentive compensation in the third quarter.

The Company expects SG&A expenses to be flat or modestly higher than in the fourth quarter of 2009 as the Company has reversed a portion of
the temporary cost cuts that were put in place in the first and second quarters, namely the furloughs and salary reductions for non-executive
employees, reinstated some the remaining temporary cost reductions and has instituted new sales and other incentive programs for the last half
of the year. The Company intends to reinstate the remaining temporary cost reductions as revenues continue to recover.

Engineering, research and development expenses Engineering, research and development (ER&D) expenses decreased by $1.7 million, or
17%, to $8.6 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2009 compared to $10.3 million for the same period in fiscal 2008. ER&D expenses decreased
19% to $25.3 million in the first nine months of 2009 compared to $31.1 million in the year-ago nine-month period. The reduction in ER&D
expense mainly reflects lower employee costs. Year-to-date ER&D expenses, as a percent of net sales, increased to 10.0% from 7.0%, mainly
reflecting the decrease in net sales.

On a sequential basis, ER&D expenses rose $0.7 million, or 9%, mainly due to the reversal of salary reductions, the absence of employee
furloughs and the accrual of incentive compensation in the third quarter.

Amortization of intangible assets Amortization of intangible assets was $4.7 million in the three months ended September 26, 2009 compared
to $4.9 million in the year-ago period. Amortization of intangible assets was $14.6 million in the first nine months of 2009 compared to $14.5
million in year-ago period.

Restructuring charges Restructuring charges were $2.4 million in the three months ended September 26, 2009 compared to $3.3 million in the
year-ago period. Restructuring charges were $12.5 million in the first nine months of 2009 compared to $3.3 million in year-ago period. In 2008,
the Company initiated a global business restructuring of its sales and marketing function, manufacturing operations, and realignment of the
global supply chain and other ancillary operational functions. The Company has incurred employee termination and other costs in connection
with the business restructuring and actions taken in response to the downturn in the semiconductor industry that began during the second half of
2008. See Note 7 to the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements for additional detail.

Interest (expense) income, net Net interest expense was $2.7 million and $7.1 million in the three-month and nine-month periods ended
September 26, 2009, respectively, compared to $0.6 million and $0.7 million in the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 27,
2008, respectively. The variance was due mainly to a significant increase in the Company�s outstanding debt compared to a year ago and higher
interest rates under the Company�s Restated Credit Agreement. The Company expects lower interest expense in the three-month period ended
December 31, 2009 due to the reduction in the Company�s outstanding borrowings in the third quarter.

Other expense, net Other expense was $4.1 million and $0.4 million in the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009,
respectively. These amounts mainly reflect foreign currency transaction losses of $4.1 million and $0.7 million, in the three-month and
nine-month periods ended September 26, 2009 respectively, related to the remeasurement of yen-denominated assets and liabilities held by the
Company�s U.S. entity.

Other expense in the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 27, 2008 totaled $0.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively. In June
2008, the Company also invested an additional $1.0 million in a privately-held chemical mechanical planarization (CMP) pad company. Based
upon the pricing of this investment, the Company determined that its previous investment of $1.5 million in this same company was partially
impaired. Accordingly, the Company recognized an impairment loss of $0.8 million in the second quarter of 2008.
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The Company recognized an impairment loss of $0.3 million in the third quarter of 2008 on another equity investment.

Income tax (benefit) expense The Company recorded income tax expense of $0.6 million in the three months ended September 26, 2009
compared to income tax expense of $12.9 million in the three months ended September 27, 2008. For the first nine months of 2009, the
Company recorded income tax benefit of $4.2 million compared to income tax expense of $16.3 million in the comparable period in fiscal 2008.

The year-to-date effective tax rate was 5.9% in the 2009 period, compared to (4.4)% in the 2008 period. In 2009, the Company�s tax rate was
lower than U.S. statutory rates, mainly due to the $17.3 million increase in the Company�s U.S. deferred tax asset valuation allowance.
Management concluded that it is not more likely than not that the Company will realize certain deferred tax assets associated with 2009 U.S.
operating losses, and thus provided an allowance for the portion of deferred tax assets management concluded will not be utilized. The Company
also reduced its foreign valuation allowance by $0.1 million.

In 2008, the Company�s tax rate was lower than U.S. statutory rates mainly attributable to two factors. The Company recorded a $379.8 million
goodwill impairment charge in the quarter ended September 27, 2008. Most of the Company�s goodwill was not deductible for income tax
purposes. Accordingly, the Company recognized a tax benefit of only $14.8 million in connection with the goodwill impairment charge.

Also during the three-month period ended September 27, 2008, the Company recorded a $26.9 million valuation allowance against its deferred
tax assets. The realization of these assets is dependent on future U.S. taxable income which, at September 27, 2008, in management�s estimate,
was not more likely than not to be achieved.

The Company�s effective tax rate was also lower than U.S. statutory rates due to the benefit of a tax holiday in Malaysia whereby, as a result of
employment commitments, research and development expenditures and capital investments made by the Company, income from certain
manufacturing activities in Malaysia is exempt from income taxes. The effective tax rate is also affected by lower tax rates in certain of the
Company�s taxable jurisdictions.

Discontinued operations The Company�s cleaning equipment business, classified as a discontinued operation, recorded operating losses of $0.1
million and $1.0 in the three months and nine months ended September 27, 2008, respectively. The Company completed the sale of its cleaning
equipment business in April 2008.

Net loss The Company recorded a net loss from continuing operations of $7.6 million, or $0.07 per diluted share, in the three-month period
ended September 26, 2009 compared to a net loss of $392.9 million, or $3.51 per diluted share, in the three-month period ended September 27,
2008. The net loss from continuing operations for the nine-month period was $67.9 million, or $0.60 per diluted share, compared to a net loss
from continuing operations of $384.2 million, or $3.40 per diluted share, in the year-ago period. The net losses in the three-month and
nine-month periods ended September 27, 2008 included a goodwill impairment charge of $379.8 million ($365.2 million, net of tax).

Segment Analysis

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company changed its financial reporting structure reflecting organizational changes. Beginning in 2009, the
Company will report its financial performance based on three reporting segments. The following is a discussion on the results of operations of
these three business segments. See Note 13 �Segment Reporting� to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information on
the Company�s three segments.
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The following table presents selected sales and segment profit (loss) data for the Company�s three segments with the year-ago results.

Three months ended Nine months ended

(In thousands)
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
September 26,

2009
September 27,

2008
Contamination Control Solutions
Net sales $ 65,649 $ 85,806 $ 147,477 $ 267,807
Segment profit 12,261 20,911 7,182 68,053
Micro Environments
Net sales $ 32,445 $ 47,630 $ 73,303 $ 156,359
Segment profit (loss) 5,186 6,855 (5,016) 24,225
Entegris Specialty Materials
Net sales $ 12,612 $ 12,353 31,540 $ 17,797
Segment profit 1,369 3,832 939 5,853

Contamination Control Solutions (CCS)

Net sales For the third quarter of 2009, CCS net sales decreased 23% to $65.6 million, from $85.8 million, in the comparable period last year,
reflecting the downturn in the semiconductor industry that began during the second half of 2008.

Sales were up 38% on a sequential basis from the second quarter of 2009, following a 39% increase from the first quarter to the second quarter.
The growth reflected increased demand for liquid filtration products and chemical containers, which was driven by increased semiconductor fab
utilization rates, particularly in Asia and improved sales of CCS capital-driven products, such as photochemical pumps, fluid handling products,
and gas purification systems, which increased 69%. Despite this improvement, third quarter sales of most CCS capital-driven products remained
at levels below historical volumes.

For the nine months ended September 26, 2009, CCS net sales decreased 45%, to $147.5 million, from $267.8 million in the comparable period
last year. The changes in net sales reflect the underlying economic and semiconductor industry conditions noted above.

CCS reported a segment profit of $12.3 million in the third quarter of 2009 compared to a $20.9 million segment profit in the third quarter of
2008, a decrease of 41%. For the nine months ended September 26, 2009, CCS reported segment income of $7.2 million compared to segment
profit of $68.1 million, a decrease of 89%.

The sharp decline in sales volume and the resulting reduction in gross profit primarily account for the year-to-year change in the segment�s
operating results. Slightly offsetting the decline in gross profit, CCS operating expenses decreased 22%, mainly due to lower selling and
engineering, research and development costs.

Micro Environments (ME)

Net sales For the third quarter of 2009, ME net sales decreased 32%, to $32.4 million, from $47.6 million in the comparable period last year,
reflecting the downturn in the semiconductor industry that began during the second half of 2008.

Sales were up 24% on a sequential basis from the second quarter of 2009, following a 78% increase from the first quarter to the second quarter.
The growth was primarily due to improved demand for wafer shippers needed to support increased production in the semiconductor industry, as
the industry worked through wafer inventories and some of the leading wafer growers resumed production after shutting down for much of the
first quarter of 2009.

For the nine months ended September 26, 2009, ME net sales decreased 53%, to $73.3 million, from $156.4 million in the comparable period
last year. The changes in net sales reflect the underlying overall economic and semiconductor industry conditions noted above.
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ME reported segment income of $5.2 million in the third quarter of 2009 compared to a $6.9 million segment profit in the third quarter of 2008,
a decrease of 24%. For the nine months ended September 27, 2009, ME reported a segment loss of $5.0 million compared to a segment profit of
$24.2 million, a decrease of 121%.

The sharp decline in sales volume and the resulting reduction in gross profit primarily account for the year-to-year change in the segment�s
operating results. Slightly offsetting the decline in gross profit, ME operating expenses decreased 26%, mainly due to lower selling and
engineering, research and development costs.

Entegris Specialty Materials (ESM)

Net sales For the third quarter of 2009, ESM net sales increased 2%, to $12.6 million, from $12.4 million in the comparable period last year.
The third quarter 2009 sales reflected the full-quarter inclusion of sales from Poco Graphite, Inc. (POCO), which was acquired in August 2008.
Excluding POCO, sales fell 39% in 2009 when compared to 2008.

Sales were up 42% on a sequential basis from the second quarter of 2009. The increase was due to higher demand for semiconductor-related
graphite and silicon carbide products and a partial recovery of demand for certain industrial products.

For the nine months ended September 26, 2009, ESM net sales increased 77%, to $31.5 million, from $17.8 million in the comparable period
last year. The nine-month period ended September 26, 2009 reflected the full-year inclusion of net sales from POCO. Excluding POCO, sales
fell 48% in 2009 when compared to 2008.

ESM reported segment income of $1.4 million in the third quarter of 2009 compared to segment income of $3.8 million in the third quarter of
2008, a decrease of 64%. For the nine months ended September 26, 2009, ESM reported a segment profit of $0.9 million compared to a segment
profit of $5.9 million, a decrease of 84%. The addition of POCO�s results offset the effects of the significantly lower sales of ESM�s specialty
coatings business.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating activities Cash used in operating activities totaled $7.1 million in the nine months ended September 26, 2009, net of various
non-cash charges, including depreciation and amortization of $38.3 million, share-based compensation expense of $6.3 million, and a $4.1
million incremental charge associated with the fair market value write-up of inventory acquired in the acquisition of POCO and Pureline. The
net impact of changes in operating assets and liabilities, mainly reflecting a decline in inventory and an increase in accounts receivable, also
partially offset the cash used by operations.

Accounts receivable, net of foreign currency translation adjustments, increased by $7.5 million in the first nine months of 2009. This increase
reflects an upturn in bookings and sales of the Company�s products. The Company�s days sales outstanding was 66 days compared to 57 days at
the beginning of the year, reflecting the effect of lower sales and the lengthening of customers� paying patterns to historical norms. Inventories at
the end of the quarter decreased by $10.7 million from December 31, 2008, after taking into account the impact of foreign currency translation
adjustments, provision for excess and obsolete inventory, and the charge for the fair value mark-up of acquired inventory. The decrease was
mainly due to the effect of the Company�s worldwide efforts to reduce inventories.

Working capital at September 26, 2009 stood at $179.5 million, down from $233.8 million as of December 31, 2008, and included $78.4 million
in cash and cash equivalents compared to cash and cash equivalents of $115.0 million as of December 31, 2008.

Investing activities Cash flow used in investing activities totaled $8.5 million in the nine-month period ended September 26, 2009. Acquisition
of property and equipment totaled $11.5 million, primarily for additions related to manufacturing equipment, tooling and information systems.
The Company sold a building that was classified as an asset held for sale for $2.3 million in the nine-month period ended September 26, 2009.
Under its amended credit facility, the Company may not purchase more than $16 million in capital equipment in 2009 and no more than $20
million in 2010. The Company does not anticipate that these limits on capital expenditures will have an adverse effect on the Company�s
operations.
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On July 31, 2009, Entegris acquired an additional 30% equity interest of Pureline Co., Ltd. (Pureline), a privately held company located in
Munmak, Korea and manufacturer of fluid handling products. The purchase price of the 30% equity interest was $4.3 million. The Company
paid $1.1 million in cash and executed a note to the seller for $3.2 million, payable in three installments through April 2010.

Financing activities Cash used in financing activities totaled $21.3 million during the nine-month period ended September 26, 2009. The
Company received proceeds of $452.7 million from its revolving credit facilities during the first nine months of 2009 and made debt payments
of $528.1 million. The Company expended $3.6 million for debt issuance costs related to the Company�s amended revolving credit agreement.
These costs are included in other assets in the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements and are being amortized over the term of
the agreement.

On June 25, 2009, the Company filed a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission to issue debt or equity
securities at a future date. The registration statement became effective in September 2009 and on September 16, 2009 the Company received
proceeds of $56.7 million from a registered public offering. The Company used the full amount of the net proceeds to reduce outstanding debt.

The Company received proceeds of $1.1 million in connection with common shares issued under the Company�s employee stock purchase plans.

At September 26, 2009, the Company�s shareholders� equity stood at $334.8 million, down from $336.2 million at the beginning of the year. The
decrease reflected the Company�s net loss of $67.8 million. The net loss was partially offset by the increase in additional paid-in capital of $6.3
million associated with the Company�s share-based compensation expense, the positive effects of foreign currency translation of $1.8 million and
$56.7 million from the registered public offering.

As described in Note 8 to the Company�s condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company executed a new revolving credit agreement
(Restated Credit Agreement) on March 2, 2009, which expires in November 2011. The initial revolving commitment under the Restated Credit
Agreement was $150.0 million, with $11.0 million unavailable without consent of a majority of the Company�s banks. In accordance with the
terms of the Restated Credit Agreement, after the receipt of net proceeds of $56.7 million from the registered public offering on September 16,
2009, the revolving commitment decreased by 50% of the net proceeds, or $28.3 million, to $121.7 million, with $11.0 million unavailable
without consent of a majority of the Company�s banks. There were $67.4 million in borrowings and $1.3 million in undrawn letters of credit
outstanding under the Restated Credit Agreement at September 26, 2009. The borrowing base supported $106.5 million in total availability
under the Restated Credit Agreement as of September 26, 2009.

The Restated Credit Agreement requires that the Company meet various financial covenants. Through September 26, 2009, the Company has
been in compliance with all financial covenants required by the Restated Credit Agreement. The Restated Credit Agreement requires that the
Company not exceed the negative year-to-date EBITDA amounts in 2009 and that the Company exceed the positive year-to-date EBITDA
amounts at prescribed levels on a monthly basis through March 2010. Under the Restated Credit Agreement EBITDA is calculated by adding
consolidated net income (loss), depreciation, amortization, share-based compensation expense, interest expense, income taxes, non-cash gains
and losses, extraordinary gains and losses, non-recurring expenses associated with a permitted acquisition, foreign exchange expense and certain
expenses related to the Restated Credit Agreement. Non-cash gains and losses include adjustments to the Company�s excess and obsolete
inventory reserves and allowances for doubtful accounts, and impairment charges of long-lived assets and investments. In addition, the credit
agreement allows the add-back of up to $1.0 million in restructuring charges.

If the Company�s future financial performance fails to meet these financial covenants, then its lenders may take control of the Company�s
domestic cash receipts from the collection of its receivables as well as certain other assets. In this event, the Company�s ability to conduct
business could be severely impeded as there can be no assurance that funds adequate in amount and timing would be available to meet the
Company�s liquidity requirements.
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The global credit market crisis created a very difficult business environment beginning in October 2008. The Company�s operating performance,
as well as its liquidity position, has been and continues to be negatively affected by these economic conditions, many of which are beyond its
control. The Company does not believe it is likely that these adverse economic conditions, and their effect on the semiconductor industry, will
improve to pre-recessionary status in the near term. However, the effect of the current global economic environment on the semiconductor
industry requires that the Company maintain its near-term liquidity support.

As of September 26, 2009, the Company�s sources of available funds were $78.4 million in cash and cash equivalents, of which the Company
must maintain a minimum of $25.0 million domestically under the terms of the Restated Credit Agreement. The borrowing base, which is
calculated by reference to the Company�s levels of qualifying domestic accounts receivable, inventories and value of its property, plant and
equipment, supported $106.5 million in total availability as of September 26, 2009.

Notwithstanding the constraints under the Restated Credit Agreement described above, the Company also has a line of credit with four banks
that provide for borrowings of currencies for the Company�s Japanese subsidiary, equivalent to an aggregate of approximately $17.2 million.
There was $3.7 million outstanding on these lines of credit at September 26, 2009.

The Company believes that its cash and cash equivalents and funds available under its amended domestic and international credit facilities will
be sufficient to meet its working capital and investment requirements for the next twelve months. If available liquidity is not sufficient to meet
the Company�s operating and debt service obligations as they come due, management�s plans include further reducing expenditures as necessary,
or pursuing alternative arrangements through additional equity or debt financing in order to meet the Company�s cash requirements for the next
twelve months. However, given recent economic events and the resulting credit shortage, there can be no assurance that any such financing
would be available on commercially acceptable terms.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 14 (Recent Accounting Pronouncements) of Item 1.

Cautionary Statements This report contains �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company�s current views with respect to future events and financial performance. The words
�believe,� �expect,� �anticipate,� �intends,� �estimate,� �forecast,� �project,� �should� and similar expressions are intended to identify these �forward-looking
statements.� All forecasts and projections in this report are �forward-looking statements,� and are based on management�s current expectations of
the Company�s near-term results, based on current information available pertaining to the Company. The risks which could cause actual results to
differ from those contained in such �forward looking statements� include, without limit, (i) inability to meet customer demands associated with
semiconductor industry spending; (ii) the transition to new products, the uncertainty of customer acceptance of new product offerings, and rapid
technological and market change; (iii) insufficient, excess or obsolete inventory; (iv) competitive factors, including but not limited to pricing
pressures; and (v) the risks described in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 under the headings
�Risks Relating to our Business and Industry�, �Manufacturing Risks�, �International Risks�, and �Risks Related to the Securities Markets and
Ownership of our Securities� as well as in the Company�s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Item 3: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Entegris� principal financial market risks are sensitivities to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. The Company�s interest-bearing
cash equivalents, long-term debt and short-term borrowings are subject to interest rate fluctuations. Most of the Company�s long-term debt at
September 26, 2009 carries floating rates of interest. The Company�s cash equivalents are instruments with maturities of three months or less. A
100 basis point change in interest rates would potentially increase or decrease annual net income by approximately $0.5 million annually.

The cash flows and earnings of the Company�s foreign-based operations are subject to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Company
occasionally uses derivative financial instruments to manage the foreign currency exchange rate risks associated with its foreign-based
operations. At September 26, 2009, the Company had no outstanding forward contracts.

Item 4: Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The Company�s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the �1934 Act�)) as of September 26, 2009. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of that evaluation date, the Company�s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the 1934 Act is
(i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in applicable rules and forms of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As noted in earlier filings, the Company acquired Poco Graphite, Inc. (POCO) effective August 11, 2008. Management excluded the total assets
and net sales related to POCO included in the consolidated financial statements of Entegris, Inc. and subsidiaries from its assessments of the
effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting for periods through June 27, 2009.

Management included total assets of $103 million and net sales of $28 million related to POCO in the conduct of its assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of September 26, 2009. The Company completed the integration of the
former POCO general ledger system onto the Company�s SAP platform during the third quarter of 2009. The Company continues to evaluate the
associated financial reporting controls to ensure the operating effectiveness of these controls.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial reporting.

Other than the change related to POCO mentioned above, there was no change in the Company�s internal control over financial reporting during
the most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company�s internal control
over financial reporting.
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PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

The following discussion provides information regarding certain litigation to which the Company was a party that were pending as of
September 26, 2009.

As previously disclosed, on March 3, 2003 the Company�s predecessor, Mykrolis Corporation, filed a lawsuit against Pall Corporation in the
United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts alleging infringement of two of the Company�s U.S. patents by certain fluid
separation systems and related assemblies used in photolithography applications manufactured and sold by the defendant. The Company�s lawsuit
sought a preliminary injunction preventing the defendant from the manufacture, use, sale, offer for sale or importation into the U.S. of any
infringing product as well as damages. On April 30, 2004, the Court issued a preliminary injunction against Pall Corporation and ordered Pall to
immediately stop making, using, selling, or offering to sell within the U.S., or importing into the U.S., its PhotoKleen EZD-2 Filter Assembly
products or �any colorable imitation� of those products. On January 18, 2005, the Court issued an order holding Pall Corporation in contempt of
court for the violation of the preliminary injunction and ordering Pall to disgorge all profits earned from the sale of its PhotoKleen EZD-2 Filter
Assembly products and colorable imitations thereof from the date the preliminary injunction was issued through January 12, 2005. In addition,
Pall was also ordered to reimburse Mykrolis for certain of its attorney�s fees associated with the contempt and related proceedings. The Court�s
order also dissolved the preliminary injunction, effective January 12, 2005, based on certain prior art cited by Pall which it alleged raised
questions as to the validity of the patents in suit. On February 17, 2005, the Company filed notice of appeal to the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals
for the Federal Circuit appealing the portion of the Court�s order that dissolved the preliminary injunction and Pall filed a notice of appeal to that
court with respect to the finding of contempt and the award of attorneys� fees. On June 13, 2007 the Court of Appeals issued an opinion
dismissing Pall�s appeal for lack of jurisdiction and affirming the District Court�s order dissolving the preliminary injunction.

On April 6, 2006 the Company filed a lawsuit against Pall Corporation in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts
alleging infringement of the Company�s newly issued U.S. patent No. 7,021,667 by certain filter assembly products used in photolithography
applications that are manufactured and sold by the defendant. The Company�s lawsuit seeks a preliminary injunction preventing the defendant
from the manufacture, use, sale, offer for sale or importation into the U.S. of the infringing products as well as damages. On October 23, 2006
the Company�s motion for preliminary injunction was argued before the court. On March 31, 2008 the court issued an order denying the
Company�s motion for a preliminary injunction.

On August 23, 2006 the Company filed a lawsuit against Pall Corporation in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts
alleging infringement of the Company�s newly issued U.S. patent No. 7,037,424 by certain fluid separation modules and related separation
apparatus, including the product known as the EZD-3 Filter Assembly, used in photolithography applications that are manufactured and sold by
the defendant. The Company�s lawsuit seeks a preliminary injunction preventing the defendant from the manufacture, use, sale, offer for sale or
importation into the U.S. of the infringing products as well as damages. It is believed that the EZD-3 Filter Assembly was introduced into the
market by the defendant in response to the action brought by the Company in March of 2003 as described above. On May 5, 2008, the court
issued an order consolidating this case with the two cases described in the preceding paragraphs for purposes of discovery; these cases are
currently in the discovery stage.

As previously disclosed, on December 16, 2005 Pall Corporation filed suit against the Company in U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
New York alleging patent infringement. Specifically, the suit alleges infringement of two of plaintiff�s patents by one of the Company�s gas
filtration products and by the packaging for certain of the Company�s liquid filtration products. This lawsuit seeks damages for the alleged
infringements. Both products and their predecessor products have been on the market for a number of years. The Company intends to vigorously
defend this suit and believes that it will ultimately prevail. This case is currently awaiting a hearing before the court for claim construction of the
patents in suit.
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On May, 4, 2007 Pall Corporation filed a lawsuit against the Company in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York alleging
patent infringement. Specifically, the suit alleges that certain of the Company�s point-of-use filtration products infringe a newly issued Pall
patent, as well as three older Pall patents. Pall�s action, which relates only to the U.S., asserts that �on information and belief� the Company�s
Impact 2 and Impact Plus point-of-use photoresist filters infringe a patent issued to Pall on March 27, 2007, as well as three older patents. This
lawsuit seeks damages for the alleged infringements. The Company intends to vigorously defend this suit and believes that it will ultimately
prevail. This case is currently in the discovery stage.

Item 6. Exhibits

10.1 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank National Association, as Agent, dated July 17,
2009. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Entegris, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on July 23, 2009]

10.2 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank National Association, as Agent, dated August
11, 2009. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Entegris, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 17, 2009]

10.3 Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Key Salaried Employees of Entegris, Inc.

10.4 Underwriting Agreement, dated September 10, 2009, by and among Entegris, Inc. and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. as representative
of the several underwriters named therein [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Entegris, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 15, 2009].

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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CONFORMED COPY

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ENTEGRIS, INC.

Date: October 27, 2009 /S/    GREGORY B. GRAVES        

Gregory B. Graves
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (on behalf of the

registrant and as principal financial officer)
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